
SOUTH WALES POLICE AND CRIME  
PANEL MEETING 

 
SUMMONS 
 

10.30 am  
Tuesday, 7th December, 2021 
Council Chamber, Civic Centre 
 

 
Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded.  

 This recording may be broadcast on Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council’s 
internet.  All attendees will be in view of the camera and, by attending you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 

recordings being used as outlined above. 
 

Further information regarding this agenda is available from the  
Democratic Services Department at Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council  

Tel: (01685) 725284     Email: democratic@merthyr.gov.uk 

 

A G E N D A 
 

Briefing Session 

A briefing session will be held for Panel Members at 10.15am - before the 
start of the meeting at 10.30am - and prior to the arrival of any invited 
attendees or witnesses to the meeting. 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 

 

 



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council is the host local authority for the South Wales 
Police and Crime Panel 

that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

3. Minutes of Previous Meeting of South Wales 
Police and Crime Panel - Tuesday, 14 September 
2021  

3 - 8 

4. Introduction and South Wales Joint Approach to 
Community Safety - Police and Crime 
Commissioner  

 

 To consider the attached report 
 

9 - 20 

5. Police Demand - Chief Constable Jeremy 
Vaughan  

 

 To Receive a Presentation  
 

 

6. Finance and Budgeting Issues - Peter Curran, 
Treasurer Police and Crime Commissioner and 
Umar Hussain Chief Finance Officer South Wales 
Police  

 

 To consider the attached report 
 

21 - 44 

7. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair  
 

 

  
COMPOSITION: Councillor R Young (Bridgend CBC) (Chair) 
  
 Councillors: 

B Bowen-Thomson (Cardiff Council), J Cowan (Cardiff 
Council), W Evans (City and County of Swansea), 
B Gray (Vale of Glamorgan), S Jago (Merthyr Tydfil 
CBC), R Lewis (Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC), P Rees 
(Neath Port Talbot CBC), C Richards (City and County 
of Swansea) and G Thomas (Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC) 
 
Co-optees: 
M Jehu (Vice-Chair) 
S James  
 

 together with appropriate officers 
 



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

SOUTH WALES POLICE AND 
CRIME PANEL MEETING 

 
TUESDAY, 14TH SEPTEMBER, 2021 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillor R Young (Bridgend CBC) (Chair) 

 Councillors: 
B Bowen-Thomson (Cardiff Council), R Lewis (Rhondda Cynon 
Taf CBC), G Thomas (Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC), P Rees 
(Neath Port Talbot CBC), W Evans (City and County of 
Swansea), B Gray (Vale of Glamorgan) and S Jago (Merthyr 
Tydfil CBC) 

  
Co-optees: 
M Jehu (Vice-Chair) 
 
Outside Bodies: 
Alun Michael, South Wales Police and Crime Commissioner  
Lee Jones, Chief Executive of the Office for the South Wales 
Police & Crime Commissioner 
Peter Curran, Chief Finance Officer for the Office of the South 
Wales Police & Crime Commissioner 
 
Officers:  
S Jones (Senior Solicitor) 
Judith Roberts (Minute clerk) 

 
 

 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

76   Briefing Session A briefing session for Panel Members was held from 10.15 
– 10.30 am prior to the arrival of any invited attendees or 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 
 
 
 
   

witnesses to the meeting. 
 
The Panel discussed the items that were to be considered 
at the meeting.  
 
The Chair agreed that additional matters that were raised 
and discussed would be dealt with under ‘Any Other 
Business 

77   Apologies for Absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor 
Christine Richards City and County of Swansea, Councillor 
Jayne Cowan Cardiff Council, Mr Ian Fox Independent Co-
optee. 

78   Declarations of Interest Councillor Bernie Bowen-Thompson declared a personal 
interest as Chief Executive for Safer Wales as they receive 
funding from the Commissioner’s Office. 
 
Mel Jehu declared a personal interest as a non-executive 
trustee with Safer Merthyr Tydfil as funding is received from 
the Commissioner’s Office. 

79   Minutes of previous 
meeting of South 
Wales Police and 
Crime Panel - Tuesday 
1 June 2021 

Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Meeting held on Tuesday 1 June 2021 
be accepted as a true record. 

80   Commissioner Forward 
Look and Update 

The Commissioner briefed the Panel on his report titled 
“South Wales Police: Looking to the future - The importance 
of Neighbourhood Policing, Community Safety and 
the role of the PCSO in post-Pandemic South Wales”. 
 
The following questions and comments were raised:- 
 
In relation to the funding announcement for 100 new 
PSPOs – how would that be delivered strategically & 
operationally on the streets of South Wales. 
 
At this stage of the pandemic policing and its challenges 
were returning to normal – officers returning to the streets, 
patrolling, and engaging with communities.  
 
The panel accepted that policing at this particular time had 
been extremely challenging and demanding for the police, 
but concerns were raised about the public’s ability to 
contact the police by 999 or 101. This causes the public to 
lose confidence. On-line reporting sometimes feels as 
though you are sending info into a “black hole”. 
 
It was accepted that greater public engagement was 
needed to ensure that the Police prioritised the things that 
were bothering people. 
 
In relation to the new PSPOs, this was welcomed and that 
their connection with the public was vital in modern policing, 
but it was very important that they were not taken away 
from their duties. They need to be on the streets not in back 

Page 4



 
 
 
 
   

offices. 
 
Questions were raised concerning the enquiry into the 
Mayhill riots and what some members considered to be a 
lack of progress into the investigation. The Commissioner 
reassured members that matters were progressing, but this 
was not a simple enquiry and involved many partners. 
Reports of anti-social behaviour in Neath were also relayed 
to the Commissioner and that this was having a detrimental 
effect on public confidence with the police. 
 
A question was asked how the 100 new PCSOs would be 
allocated throughout Wales and would areas of greater 
population have a greater number of the new PCSOs? 
 
Concerns were raised about the regular and frequent turn 
over of senior police officers who through career 
development provided communities with no continuity. It 
was also stated that whenever possible PCSOs should 
remain in the same community for a significant period of 
time. 
 
The Chair thanked the Commissioner’s Office for the report 

81   Finance Update Peter Curran who was supported by the Commissioner took 
the Panel through the key parts of the Finance Report in 
line with the Panel’s requirement for the Commissioner to 
provide regular updates on financial matters. 
 
In the presentation information was given on the following – 
 

 Audit Wales had confirmed their satisfactory 
completion of their audit. 

 

 The Annual Governance Statement for 2020/21 had 
been approved by the Joint Audit Committee in July 
2021. 

 

 The Annual Report of the Joint Audit Committee for 
2020/21 which demonstrated a high level of 
assurance by both internal and external audit and 
was confirmed in the Joint Audit Committee’s 
Annual Report. 
 

 Salient Current (2021/22 in-year) Financial Issues 
to include – 
 

o In-year monitoring 
o Additional PCSOs 
o Police Uplift Programme 
o Apprenticeship Levy 
o The policing response to C-19 
o Council Tax Receipts 
o Pensions 

 

 Update concerning the Comprehensive Spending 
Review 2021 and South Wales Police’ response to 
the Home Office request for information. 

Page 5



 
 
 
 
   

 

 Update on a possible review of the Police Funding 
Formula. 

 

 Capital City Funding and the business case which 
is in the process of being prepared. 

 
The Chair commented that the report was exemplary and 
covered all significant elements and it was confirmed that 
the Panel would be more than prepared to support the 
Commissioner’s request for Capital City Funding. 
 
A question was raised about hybrid and electric vehicles for 
the police fleet and whether extra money for such vehicles 
had been factored in. The Panel were assured that any 
extra cost would be offset by savings made in procuring and 
running the vehicles. 
 
The panel were assured by Mr Curran that everything was 
on budget  
 
Resolved that: 
 
Members of the Police & Crime Panel noted the contents of 
the report and the appendices. 

82   Annual Report The Commissioner and Lee Jones took the Panel through 
the Annual Report and the Panel considered and 
commented upon the same following the presentation and 
subsequent questions. 
 
Amongst other things the Annual Report 2020/2021, 
summarised the work the Commissioners team had 
undertaken throughout the Covid-19 pandemic. It has also 
dealt with significant changes to the operational leadership 
of South Wales Police, with Matt Jukes being replaced by 
Jeremy Vaughan as the new Chief Constable. 
 
The Panel were reminded that the financial challenges 
faced by South Wales Police remained significant but 
despite this the Commissioner and his office have 
continued to deliver social and economic benefit to South 
Wales in recent years; through focusing on (1) early 
intervention and prompt, positive action, and (2) working 
effectively with partners. 
 
Covid-19, had a significant impact on service provision 
and demand and for the first time the police in Wales faced 
the challenges of enforcing significant legislation set down 
by Welsh Government rather than at Westminster. 
 
Finally, the Annual Report detailed the increase in effective 
communication and collaborative working both locally and 
nationally forging stronger relationships between partners. 
 
Questions and comment were made by the Panel in 
particular to the public consultation survey detailed in the 
Annual Report and the fact that it was not comprehensive 
enough to hold weight and upon which priorities could be 

Page 6



 
 
 
 
   

based. This was accepted by the Commissioner’s office 
who sited public apathy but nevertheless detailed what 
steps they intended to take to make the consultation better. 
A follow up meeting would be arranged between a Panel 
member and the Commissioner’s office to discuss matters 
further. 
 
The panel also commented upon the good work undertaken 
with regard to Priority 3 namely the work to protect the most 
vulnerable in our communities, understanding causes and 
taking prompt positive action as issues arise. The Drive 
Project was singled out for praise. 
 
Resolved that: 
 
To agree the content of the Annual report with the Panel 
recognising that the pandemic has put a significant strain on 
parts of the plan. It was however recommendations that (1) 
there continues to be investment in front line services, (2) 
that the priorities detailed in the report in particular the 
priority to protect the vulnerable is maintained and 
continues to a significant priority for the police and (3) 
although partnership working is good and is a priority for the 
Commissioner improvements need to be made with regard 
to public engagement to guide priorities and partnership 
working. 

83   Scrutiny Annual Report Lee Jones outlined the salient points of the Commissioner’s 
Annual Scrutiny Report demonstrating that the 
Commissioner used a range of ways to ensure formal 
scrutiny of the force. He conducts weekly meetings with 
Chief Officers and chairs a Strategic Board on a quarterly 
basis where he holds the Chief Constable to account in 
relation to crime reduction, force performance, and the 
delivery of priorities in the Police & Crime Plan.  
 
It was explained the scrutiny process was complex and that 
the Commissioner was still looking to improve scrutiny by 
focusing on the right areas. Technology would hopefully 
assist in making improvements in the future. The Ethics 
Committee and Joint Audit Committee were referred to as 
significantly adding value to scrutiny. 
 
When asked about concerns and areas for possible 
improvement specific mention was made to the effect the 
pandemic has had on domestic violence and that despite 
the introduction of IRIS it was now harder to spot domestic 
violence as victims were no longer visiting GP surgeries. It 
was accepted that lessons learned in the past should not be 
lost. 
 
The Commissioner and Lee Jones stated that they will work 
on engagement with the public, recruitment and retention, 
neighbourhood policing and the introduction of the new 
PCSOs as and when they arrive. 
 
A comment was made about the police reputation being 
very low following on from the tragic Sarah Everard case 
and that it would assist the Panel to hear in a future report 

Page 7



 
 
 
 
   

what steps the police have taken or intend to take to ensure 
that robust processes are in place to stop the police from 
recruiting “rouge officers”. It was agreed that a report will be 
presented to a future Panel meeting.  
 
Resolved that: 
 
Members of the Police & Crime Panel noted the contents of 
the report. 

84   Co-option of 
Independent Members 

Mel Jehu left the meeting before the start of this agenda 
item. The chairman and Panel member Cllr Ben Gray then 
gave an update on the appointment process for the two 
independent co-opted members. They stated that there 
were 4 applications for the two posts all of which were of a 
high standard. All applicants attended an in-person 
interview with the interview Panel comprising of the 
chairman, Cllr Gray and Cllr Christine Richards. All 
applicants were asked the same questions save for the 
applicants who were at that time in post where there had to 
be slight amendments. The Panel used a scoring system 
and came to a unanimous decision on both appointments 
who were Mel Jehu who was re-appointed for the second 
time and Ms Sarah James who was appointed for the first 
time. Although Ian Fox was not in attendance at the 
meeting the Panel thanked him for his hard work and 
contribution to the Panel. 
 
Resolved that: 
 
Members of the Police & Crime Panel appoint Ms Sarah 
James and Mr Melvin Jehu as co-opted independent Panel 
members for the period ending on the 31st October of the 
next ordinary election of the South Wales Police & Crime 
Commissioner. 
 

85   Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair 

None. 

 
 

 

Page 8



                                                     

 

 

South 

Wales 

Police 
 

The South Wales joint approach to refreshing Community 
Safety, Neighbourhood Policing and the role of PCSOs 

During November the Police & Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable have written to 
the Leader and Chief Executive of each of our seven Local Authorities to provide a joint 
reflection on the challenges that are faced by the Police and by each Council in the coming 
year with suggestions about how we can help each other. This report explains their 
considered view of our immediate priorities and the issues we need to address jointly with 
our Local Government partners.  The letter is being followed up in our quarterly meeting with 
each Council leadership, five of which have taken place in November and the series will be 
completed next week. The response has been very positive indeed. 

We acknowledged that as we prepare for the year ahead, after two years dominated by 
COVID-19, what stands out is the excellent partnership work that we have experienced with 
Local Government as well as with Welsh Government. Even though everyone is under 
pressure there is a leadership consensus in Wales and we want to build on the success of Joint 
Enforcement Teams (Jets) by strengthening joint work on Prevention and other issues in 
which we have common interest.   

We are therefore seeking to explore with each partner how best to make that a local reality.  

The safety and security of the public is the first priority of government at every level, so no 
joint working is more significant than in Community Safety, where the local police and the 
local authority are required by law to lead partnership working, involving other agencies and 
the local community. So we have focussed specifically on this part of police responsibilities.   

As Chief Constable and Commissioner, we share a personal belief that the Community Safety 
model is vital for success – but long before the Pandemic the work of community safety had 
been disrupted across England and Wales by the impact of austerity. It led to significant loss 
of people, resources and analytic capacity in both the police and councils, undermining what 
was once a great success story.  Covid–related demand and changes in normal working and 
behaviour has made Community Safety ever more challenging to deliver – but more necessary 
than ever.  

The fundamental principles of Community Safety, set out in the 1998 Crime & Disorder Act, 
are for the Council and Police to jointly analyse harm and demand, agree action to tackle the 
identified local issues of crime, disorder and anti-social behaviour, and to continually assess 
progress. It is probably fair to say that, despite earlier successes, no Community Safety 
Partnership has been able to be fully effective since Austerity led to that loss of resources. 

Several factors make this the right time to start again so that together we make a reality of 
“Safe, Confident, Resilient, Communities” within the Future Generations Act framework. 

We therefore suggested that it is timely to link the following requirements. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



                                                     

 

 

South 

Wales 

Police 
 

• We all have to contribute to the Well-Being Assessments and priority setting required 
under the Future Generations Act. 

• Policing in Wales and Local Government (WLGA) are leading fresh thinking via the 
Safer Communities Network, supported by Welsh Government. 

• We have to establish norms for the future – whatever the “new normal” turns out to 
look like post Covid - following a Budget that doesn’t offer enough new money to 
match need as we plan for a new financial year. 

With those points in mind, we have taken stock within policing in South Wales, looking at how 
to “do more with less” and be even more effective for our public.  In doing so we have looked 
at what we can offer you as our key partner locally in the belief that together we can achieve 
more than we can achieve alone. 

Progress so far………………… 

As a contribution to our discussion, we have already taken positive steps. 

• In South Wales we will invest new resources into Community Safety as well as 
maintaining the financial support from the Commissioner’s budget that we have 
maintained since 2012 despites cuts by others. 

• With the WLGA we have made a significant financial contribution to developing a 
renewed Community Safety strategy across Wales.  

• We are heartened by the sense of community that has characterised much of the 
response to COVID-19 in Wales and how police and council officers have worked 
together – we plan to build on that. 

• Additional PCSOs funded by Welsh Government and additional police officers funded 
by the Home Office give us the chance to invest in local policing despite increased 
demand and wider challenges of organised crime, people trafficking, county lines and 
online fraud. 

• But the Pandemic has left communities fragile and worried, with pleas from the public 
to police and councils alike for action on antisocial behaviour, on the safety and 
confidence of women and girls, on all aspects of hate crime and on domestic violence 
and abuse. 

Meeting those aspirations is not going to be easy and it cannot be done by the Police alone – 
nor indeed by the Council alone - so we have challenged ourselves to put fresh energy and 
additional resources into local work and want to use this autumn’s round of meetings to set 
out our “offer”, hoping for a positive response and local commitment so that we can build on 
our existing partnership work with you. 

Page 10



                                                     

 

 

South 

Wales 

Police 
It’s not easy when the current level of demand on the police is so high (please see Annex A) 
and when each Council too is facing significant demands, but we became convinced that the 
time is right to set out the following proposals as our contribution to joint working. 

Our commitment of staff and resources 

Our three-fold operational commitment has a focus on…………………. 

• Neighbourhood Policing – It’s a priority for the Chief Constable and at the heart of the 
Commissioner’s Police & Crime Plan. Neighbourhood policing resources are being 
realigned under each Partnerships Superintendent with a clear focus on problem 
solving.  There’s a commitment to less abstraction of officers and PCSOs (inevitable 
during the Pandemic but criticised by councillors) and we’re making a particular effort 
to reconnect Councillors and PCSOs in ways that reflect best practice in many areas.    

• A strengthened role for our PCSOs – with a focus on communication (to the 
community and listening to the community) on local problem-solving and on 
empowerment (enabling local people to solve local issues).  The Chief Constable is 
deploying the 41 additional PCSOs we are recruiting through the Welsh Government 
initiative into priority work such as youth engagement, community cohesion, 
substance misuse, harm reduction, anti-social behaviour and town-centre issues to 
help find local solutions to local problems. 

• Community Safety – with new senior staff roles each BCU to work with each Council’s 
community safety staff, to provide the long-term continuity that we have lacked in 
recent years in addition to the committed local police leadership. One appointment is 
being made to each BCU immediately with four more appointments to follow in due 
course to give a dedicated police lead for each council area, specifically linked to the 
Neighbourhood Team and to the Council’s community safety staff. 

These “problem-solving and prevention managers” will provide the essential continuity to 
match that of the Council as we work with together to analyse local issues and - together – to 
make community safety an evidence-based (rather than opinion-based) endeavour. 

• To help drive partnership working, Dan Jones has been appointed as Head of 
Community Safety in the Commissioner’s Team and will be supported by Gemma 
Woolfe and Rachel Loveridge. Dan will continue to be Deputy Director of the Violence 
Prevention Unit for Wales, bringing his experience there into our local community 
safety work, offering support for problem solving groups and Community Safety 
meetings with a link to the Commissioner’s Strategic Policy Leads, for example on 
Domestic Violence & Abuse and Criminal Justice, particularly Youth Justice.  

• Mark Brace will provide strategic leadership for our engagement as members of the 
Public Services Board, and we believe it is essential for Community Safety work to feed 
into the PSB as is happening increasingly at the local level. It is encouraging that the 
Future Generations Commissioner acknowledges the importance of progress towards 
“Safe, Confident, Resilient Communities” within the Well Being Assessment.   

Page 11



                                                     

 

 

South 

Wales 

Police 
 

The above will support the strengthened Neighbourhood Policing Teams by focussing strongly 
on the facts locally and on early intervention and prevention, while enhancing our community 
problem solving capability and working closely with the council’s Community Safety Team.  

Our financial commitment to local action 

The existing level of financial contributions to community safety from the Commissioner’s 
budget will continue but use of that money hasn’t always been clear or well targeted.  The 
same is true of our considerable contribution to each Youth Offending Team, in terms of 
money and police officer secondments. Dan Jones will discuss this with relevant managers 
with a view of ensuring that there is value for money and clarity between us in future.  

The Commissioner’s investment in Dyfodol provides a joined-up approach to substance 
misuse (drugs and alcohol) and we are exploring the prospects for an “Alliance” approach 
with local NHS services to make us all more effective on issues that threaten every local area.  
We need to tackle local attitudes to substance misuse and we are discussing with Public 
Health Wales the potential for changing public attitudes and behaviour. 

We have also invested heavily in tackling the scourge of domestic violence and abuse, with 
the DRIVE programme now tackling head on some of the most serious perpetrators as well as 
the work we undertake to support victims and survivors, as previously reported to the Panel.  
It is worth noting that at present this work is funded from police funds alone although the 
problem that we are tackling is a priority for everyone. 

We expect IRIS referrals (via GP surgeries) to grow in number once more as the Pandemic 
recedes and we need to make it easier for victims to seek help in each part of South Wales. 

Joint Problem-Solving Teams? 

If we are to seize the moment to build on the success of the Joint Enforcement Teams (JETs) 
during the Pandemic, we need to decide on the brief and the local arrangements for what 
might be called “joint problem-solving teams”.  The format of those teams – and whether 
they are co-located or “virtual” – is a matter for local discussion with each Council. 

Multi-agency membership is needed, with joint planning based on local data and need, and 
contributions from partners including Health, Fire Service and Voluntary Sector.   That might 
involve staff from such disciplines as licensing, environmental health, trading standards and 
youth work, matched with our staff to undertake joint activity. These could include 
engagement, education initiatives and prevention campaigns as well as joint operations and 
joint patrols. We are NOT suggesting new burdens but joint action to tackle issues that 
create demand for both the Police and the Council.  The starting point will be joint practices 
that have been successful during the Pandemic, but we are approaching this with open minds 
to capture the opportunity that has presented itself as we return to a “new normality”.   

 

 

Page 12



                                                     

 

 

South 

Wales 

Police 
 

 

This report provides a brief summary of our starting point for discussion and as it appears that 
Councils are keen to explore what we might achieve jointly with each Council and we will 
work with each to develop a memorandum of understanding, to analyse the data and to agree 
joint objectives, and to agree joint operating procedures and logistical arrangements to put 
in place the most effective partnership working arrangements possible.  

As the work develops with each Council, we will seek to engage councillors and staff as well 
as the public we all serve.  That is why we set out this framework for discussion and we are 
now very optimistic that the discussion will lead to joint action.  As mentioned, we are seeing 
positive engagement by each of our seven local authorities and as these developments 
progress we will keep the Police & Crime Panel informed.    
 
 
Attached :  
Annex A :  Demand on Policing in South Wales  

Annex B :  Demand on Policing in South Wales  

Annex C : Public Health Approach to harm, crime and nuisance 

 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



On a typical day in South Wales Police 

ONGOING DEMAND

INCOMING DEMAND

Dealt with 91 
domestic abuse 

incidents, Respond 
to 238 public 
safety welfare 

incidents

Approximately 912  
incidents  

were recorded 

Approximately 
37% of 

demand was 
crime related

• 10 posts per day 
• 3,570 ‘reactions’ 
• 2,390 shares 
• 1,250 public comments 
• 212 private messages 

received

• 49 tweets per day 
• 145 retweets 
• 231 public @ mentions 
• 56 private messages 

received

In addition to  
responding to daily calls  

for service, we also undertake 
proactive work to safeguard the 

public, including:  

Over the last 
twelve months, 

the force 
Engaged with 
11,693 repeat 

victims of 
domestic 
abuse and 
violence

Over the last six months, 
the force has supported 
1,800 children who are  

on the Protection 
Register. 

Deal with 153 
ASB incidents

Carry out 41 stop 
searches, of which  
4 result in an arrest

Approximately  
271 crimes are  

reported each day,  
including: 

61 violent crimes 
9 sexual offences,  
including 3 rapes 

16 vehicle 
crimes 

South Wales  
Police is the largest  

police force in Wales  
& provides a policing 
service to 1.3 million 

people (42% of  
the country’s  
population)

There is  
one officer  

for every 422 
members of our 

community in the 
South Wales 
Police force  

area

#TeamSWP  
is made up of 3,144  

FTE (Full Time Equivalent) 
police officers, 389 FTE 

PCSO’s 2,027 FTE police 
staff, and a team of 

dedicated volunteers that 
includes over 200 Special 

Constables and around  
200 Police Youth 

Volunteers

Responded to 
18 missing 

person reports.

Data Relates to 1st October 2020 – 30th September 2021

62 primary 
arrests made 

by SWP 
officers 

Attend 61 transport 
related incidents 
including road  

traffic collisions

2 people taken to a 
place of safety under 

section 136 of the 
Mental Health Act

Managing 
approximately 

3,075 offenders 
under Multi-

Agency Public 
Protection 

Arrangements in 
partnership with 

other local 
bodies 

Approximately 602 
emergency calls,  

1,206 non-emergency calls  
were received by the Public 

Service Centre everyday

Voluntary 
Attendance 

9

79% of  
hate crime  

victims and 84%  
of domestic abuse 

and violence victims 
were satisfied with 

their whole 
experience

 45 Positive  
Crime outcomes:  

30 charges,  
3 cautions, 1 PND,  
3 Khat/Cannabis  

warnings,  
8 restorative  
approaches

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX B SOUTH WALES POLICE

DEMAND November 2021 (NEW)
April 2021 – September 2021 figures compared with April 2019 – September 2019.
The data below is what is reported to the force and does not represent the actual level 
experienced by the public.

999 Calls
Received 126,483 calls

(16,443 more)

+15%

101 Calls
Received 227,543 calls

(34,343 fewer)
Earlier period includes switchboard calls

-13%

+31%-8%

+23%

+8%-4%

-3%-0%

-29%+2%

-3%-24%

+16%+12%

Emergency and Priority 

Incidents
82,395 emergency & priority 

incidents attended 

(6,668 fewer)

Public Order Offences
8,290 offences

(1,552 more)

Calls from other 

sources and agencies
23,481 calls 

(5,621 more)

Digital contacts
102,621 via social media, 

email and Single Online Home.

Incomplete data available for 

earlier period.

Violence With Injury
6,102 offences

(258 fewer)

Incidents reported by 

WAST
4,236 incidents

(19 less) 

Stalking and 

Harassment
8,121 offences

(579 more)

Domestic Violence & 

Abuse
9,262 offences

(269 fewer)

Drugs Offences
2,227 offences 

(51 more)

Burglary
2,395 offences

(775 fewer)

Missing People
Investigated 3,648 reports 

(1,499 fewer)

Mental Health
444 detention powers used 

(12 fewer)

Rape and Other Serious 

Sexual Offences

1,512 offences

(156 more)

Antisocial Behaviour

17,941 incidents

(2,438 more)

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex C : A Public Health Approach to harm, crime and nuisance 

In recent years, a collaborative approach between policing, criminal justice, public health and 
a wide range of partners across different sectors in Wales has had at its heart the adoption of 
a (preventative) public health approach which has provided strong foundations for multiple 
programmes of work including the initial Police Adverse Childhood Experience pilot, the Early 
Action Together Programme and the Wales Violence Prevention Unit.  

Work by Criminal Justice in Wales has led to us jointly investing in analytic capacity which has 
now produced a flexible tool – a dashboard – which for the first time enables practitioners to 
have an accurate profile of the offenders that are being managed in your area. 

Great strides have been made in improving responses to vulnerability and increased access 
to early intervention and prevention (IRIS and DRIVE are two examples where investment 
from Police funds have enabled significant interventions on domestic violence and abuse.  

These developments will help us together to lead local Community Safety Partnerships to 
review their work, to develop community safety audits that are accurate and meaningful and 
jointly to take a public health approach that is supported by the following principles: 

1. Developing a detailed understanding of the nature, extent, and impact of an issue – 

including the evidence of what is likely to cause or prevent it in the short, medium and 

long term – using shared data and intelligence. 

2. Seeking to prevent an issue for your population as a whole by intervening early with 

at-risk groups to reduce the harm caused by the issue, including by promoting 

recovery and increasing resilience. 

3. Understanding that the police, their partners and communities can work together to 

address the causes and impact of an issue by taking a whole system approach – instead 

of having a focus only on a response to harm. 

4. Working with partners to coordinate tailored and targeted action that, together, aims 

to prevent:  

- an issue emerging in the first place or re-emerging by focusing on social 

determinants/the causes at a population level (primary prevention) 

- an emerging issue from becoming an established problem (secondary prevention) 

- an established problem getting worse and becoming a crisis, and mitigating the 

immediate impact of the problem (tertiary prevention) 

5. Assessing how well interventions are implemented, and how effective they are at 

preventing the issue for your population and/or reducing the harm to relevant groups. 

6. Learning from the effectiveness of actions and making necessary changes whether at 

an individual, organisational or system-wide level. 

7. Building leadership across public services and communities to work together to 

address an issue, and its causes and harms, by aligning strategy, leadership and 

resources 

Reflecting upon the spirit of the Crime and Disorder Act (1998), this approach will ensure 
that community safety audits are data led and evidence based, that they represent the 
needs of the local community, and that they strengthen the ability of our neighbourhood 
policing and council teams, with partners, to coordinate a multi-agency problem solving 
response.  

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

 

  

1 

 

 

REPORT OF THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER 

SOUTH WALES POLICE 

TITLE:  Analyis of Comprehensive Spending Review 2021 

DATE:  7th December 2021 

PURPOSE: For Noting 
 

1. RECOMMENDATION 

 

To note the contents of the attached report, which provides a commentary on 

the Compehensive Review 2021 announced by the Chancellor in October 

2021. The salient points are: 

 

 Additional income for the Police Uplift Programme to total £540 
million by the 2024/25 financial year 
 

 An additional £260 million to be granted to partly cover cost 
pressures by 2024/25 

 

 Overall, the funding will be insufficient to cover core costs, 
inflation, pay awards, capital and other cost pressures. 

 
 

 INTRODUCTION & BACKGROUND 

The Chancellor announced a three-year Comprehenive Review during his 

Autumn Budget on October 27th 2021.  

This is the first time in a number of years that a three-year direction of travel 

in terms of Home Office funding, has been announced. 

The attached report analysis the announmcement and covers the following 

areas: 

 Financial Analysis of Settlement 

 Efficienicies 

 Police Uplift Programme 

 Core Funding / Budget Pressures 

 Council Tax Receipts 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



  

 

 

  

2 

 

 

 Review of Police Funding Formula 

 Government Plan for Health & Social Care 

 Additional PCSOs 

 Apprecticeship Levy 

 Policing Response to Covid-19 

 Pensions 

4. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

The financial implications are fully articulated within the attached report. 

 

5. EQUALITIES  AND HUMAN RIGHTS CONSIDERATIONS 

This proposal has been considered against the general duty to promote 

equality, as stipulated under our Strategic Equality Plan and has been 

assessed not to discriminate against any particular group. The Commissioner 

and the Chief Constable share a high level of commitment to promoting 

equalities – most recently working  to provide leadership within Policing in 

Wales and within Criminal Justice in Wales on race equality – and putting 

principles into practice in South Wales in our internal arrangements, in 

combatting hate crime of all sorts and in ensuring that resources are deployed 

to meet these commitments. 

6. RISKS 

The analysis undertaken as part of this report assessed all risks, a far as they 

can be anticipated at this announcement stage. Further risk work will be 

undertaken once the detailed gant settlement is announced later in December 

2021. 

 

7. PUBLIC INTEREST 

This report will be placed on the website of both the Commissioner and the 

Police and Crime Panel. 

8. CONTACT OFFICER 

Peter Curran, Chief Finance Officer to the Police and Crime Commissioner for 

South Wales. 

 

Page 22



POLICE & CRIME PANEL : 7th DECEMBER 2021 
ANALYSIS OF COMPREHENSIVE SPENDING REVIEW 2021 & OTHER SALIENT FINANCIAL ISSUES   
 
 

1.Introduction & Purpose 

This report presents an analysis of the Comprehensive Spending Review 2021 plus 

other salient financial issues, which the Police & Crime Panel is asked to note. 

2. Comprehensive Spending Review 2021 

The Chancellor announced the Comprehensive Spending Review 2021 (CSR21) 

during his autumn Budget speech on October 27th 2021. It is a three-year SR, from 

2022/23 to 2024/25. 

The announced total new money for Policing over the three years is as follows: 

 2022/23 (£ 

million) 

2023/24 (£ million) 2024/25 (£ million) 

Police Uplift 432* 486* 540 

Core Funding 118* 164* 260 

Total 550 650 800 

Estimated Allocation 

to South Wales Police 

12.1* 14.3* 17.6* 

 These figures are our assessments of allocations in the years shown – confirmed 

figures are in bold in the table above 

The precise and detailed allocations to Commissioners will be announced in mid-December. 

Other Announced Funding in the CSR 

Efficiency savings (cashable) - limited to £100 million over the three-year period  

Crime Reduction & Drug Misuse – an additional £42 million  

Money Laundering & Fraud – an additional £18 million in 2022/23, £12 million in 

2023/24 & 2024/25 

Emergency Services Network - £125 million in 2022/23 

Illegal Migration – an additional £85 million by 2024/25 

Resettlement of Refugees – an additional £468 million by 2024/25 

Analysis of Settlement 

Until the precise allocations are known, it is not possible to give a definite overview 

of the announcement since figures are presently at a high level and inevitably “the 

devil will be in the detail”. Pensions funding, for example, was excluded from the 

announcement and is being considered by the Treasury, and so in the short-term, 

Page 23



POLICE & CRIME PANEL : 7th DECEMBER 2021 
ANALYSIS OF COMPREHENSIVE SPENDING REVIEW 2021 & OTHER SALIENT FINANCIAL ISSUES   
 
 

there remains uncertainty over the continuation of receipt of grant from the Treasury 

to part-fund the deficit on the Scheme, and longer-term, we await confirmation of 

how the strategic issues, detailed later in this paper, will be addressed by the 

Treasury. 

So below is a high-level analysis of what can be ascertained at this stage, with 

reference to the work undertaken in the lead-up to the Home Office submission to 

the Treasury in September. It will focus on three areas: 

 Efficiencies 

 Police Uplift Programme (PUP) Funding 

 Core Funding / Budget Pressures 

Efficiencies 

As stated above, the announced cashable efficiency savings in the CSR, for the 

three-year period, will amount to £100 million. Assuming this is allocated in 

accordance with the Funding Formula, the share to South Wales Police should 

equate to around £2.2 million, or £733K per annum. 

The necessary efficiency gains are anticipated to be delivered from the following 

means: 

 Demand management – mental health triage teams, incident resolution 
teams, missing persons improved partnership working; 

 Absorbing additional work from existing resources – Attorney General 
guidance on Disclosure;  

 Multi force collaborations that pool knowledge and resources for better value; 

 Better use of technology data analytics, artificial intelligence such as facial 
recognition as well as Drones; 

 Agile working and Apps development to increase consistency and standards 
of work; 

 Office 365 and tools to reconfigure business processes; 

 Increasing use of volunteers; 

 Continuous improvement and process re-engineering; 

 Establishing Productivity Innovation and Efficiency Boards to better initiate 
and capture benefits realisation;  

 Commercialisation of collaborative procurement including BlueLight 
Commercial and Police Digital Services; 

 Implementing logistics and telematics; 

 Investing in Prevention activity; and  

 Creation of single digital evidence repository to enhance investigative 
processes and positive outcomes. 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



POLICE & CRIME PANEL : 7th DECEMBER 2021 
ANALYSIS OF COMPREHENSIVE SPENDING REVIEW 2021 & OTHER SALIENT FINANCIAL ISSUES   
 
 

Police Uplift Programme (PUP) 

Estimates of additional funding to deliver the PUP were also submitted to the Home 

Office over the summer. In summary, they showed that the total annual revenue 

expenditure forecast for 2024/25 across all four Forces was £55.1 million, with South 

Wales Police accounting for £25 million of this amount.  

In terms of funding this expenditure, South Wales Police would expect to receive 

around £11.9 million from the additional £540 million announced in the CSR. When 

added to base allocations received in previous years, our early modelling shows that 

broadly funding will cover costs over the first three years, but noting that the grant 

per Officer is likely to be reduced compared to the previous two years’ allocations. 

The residual risk lies beyond 2024/25, when costs are expected to rise due to 

promotions, refresh of capital, etc, and we have no guarantee from the Government 

that these increases will be funded. Also, given the expectation to maintain Police 

Officer numbers, budgetary pressures elsewhere could invoke the real dichotomy of 

‘reverse workforce modernisation’. 

Core Funding / Budget Pressures  
 
As noted above, the CSR announcement included an additional £260 million by 
2024/25, which could equate to around £5.7 million for South Wales Police. We 
know that this will need to cover the additional employer National Insurance 
Contributions from April 2022, estimated to be £2 million per annum for South Wales 
Police. That leaves £3.7 million to cover all other cost increases and pressures, 
which is in one sense positive in that it is better than the expected “flat-cash” 
settlement, but on the other will be insufficient to cover pay awards, inflation (which 
could hit 4% next year), technology and other cost pressures that were put forward in 
the Home Office submission. 
 
The 2022 pay award in particular could be higher than the estimated 2.5% increase 
that was assumed in the Home Office submission and has been reflected in the CSR 
announcement.  
 
Council Tax Receipts 

The pandemic is affecting Council Tax collection rates, which may have an 

implication on Precept collection levels in 2021/22 and beyond. 

Welsh Government is aware of this situation, and through the Council Tax Reduction 

Scheme will compensate Local Authorities for up to 75% of shortfalls. Each Local 

Authority sets its collection rates which will impact on the level of Precept collected. 

For information, in England, the repayment of collection fund deficits arising in 2020-
21 will be spread over 3 years rather than the usual period of a year. A similar 75% 
compensation scheme is in place. This issue needs to be kept under review. 
 

Page 25



POLICE & CRIME PANEL : 7th DECEMBER 2021 
ANALYSIS OF COMPREHENSIVE SPENDING REVIEW 2021 & OTHER SALIENT FINANCIAL ISSUES   
 
 

The CSR announcement included the Office for Budget Responsibility’s (OBR) 

forecasts of Council Tax Forecasts including growth in the tax base in England and 

Wales. This is reproduced below. The OBR’s forecasts assume that the tax base is 

anticipated to grow faster per annum in England than in Wales, and consequently a 

compensatory adjustment to the level of police precept was included to maintain 

funding parity. 

 2021-22  2022-23  2023-24  2024-25  2025-26  2026-27  

England – Tax Base  0.4% 1.1% 1.5% 1.4% 1.2% 0% 

England – Precept  4.8% 3% 2.7% 2.6% 1.8% 3% 
       

Wales – Tax Base  0.6% 0.6% 0.6% 0.6% 0.6% 0.6% 

Wales – Precept  5.5% 5.6% 5.3% 5.5% 5.5% 5.4% 

       
 

It is important to add, however, that the OBR’s forecasts are totally independent from 
the Treasury’s assumptions in growth in Precept over the CSR period, assumed to 
be £774 million. 
 
4. Review of Police Funding Formula 

The Home Office is now committed to reviewing the police funding formula, with 

changes possibly coming into place from the 2023/24 financial year, although any 

changes are likely to be gradually introduced. The past exemplifications of funding 

formula proposals showed scenarios where Wales had a net reduction in central 

funding and it is important that the Wales voice is heard in this process. There are 

salient issues relating to Welsh Forces, for example the current lack of funding for 

Cardiff as a Capital City. South Wales Police stands to gain from an equitable review 

of the Formula. 

5. Government Plan for Health & Social Care 

The Government published its paper “Build Back Better” on September 7th, which 

outlined how National Insurance contributions would increase by 1.25% for both 

employers and employees from April 2022, as a Health and Social Care Levy. 

The document included a paragraph stating “the Government intends to compensate 

departments and other public sector employers in England at the Spending Review 

for the increased cost of the Levy and provide Barnett consequential on this funding 

to the devolved administrations”. It is estimated that the gross increase in salary on-

costs for South Wales Police will be £2 million per annum, which will need to be 

funded from the all-Forces £260 million core funding (£5.7 million for SWP) allocation 

explained above. 

There are, however, other cost implications associated with this Levy: 

Page 26



POLICE & CRIME PANEL : 7th DECEMBER 2021 
ANALYSIS OF COMPREHENSIVE SPENDING REVIEW 2021 & OTHER SALIENT FINANCIAL ISSUES   
 
 

 In terms of the increase for employees, this will place further pay pressures on 

our officers and staff, resulting in reduced net pay for those affected. 

Additionally, given the pay freeze in 2021, there is likely to be a push for an 

above-inflation increase in 2022 (CPI in September 2021 was 3.1%, so there 

will be pressure to “put this right”) and on top of this, there is the 1.25% 

additional National Insurance increase. 

 If either Forces or the Home Office were to compensate for this with some 

sort of pay award, there would be consequential on-cost implications for 

employers, including the national insurance implications of pay awards and 

pensions (which are nearly a third of Officers’ salary costs), which would need 

to be considered 

 As the additional contributions are a national levy, the supply chain is unlikely 

to absorb this cost (with similar workforce wage inflation pressure) and 

therefore the costs of goods and services is expected to rise. 

6. Additional PCSOs 

Following discussions between the South Wales Commissioner and the Deputy 

Minister, it is pleasing to report that the Welsh Government has agreed to restore 

PCSO funding to real cost levels. The funding applied for the final quarter of 2020/21 

and was baselined into the current financial year.  

During 2021/22, the Welsh Government formally announced the ambition to recruit an 

additional 100 PCSO posts by the end of the financial year with South Wales Police’s 

allocation of this being an extra 41 PCSOs posts and an additional £1.5M grant. This 

will increase the establishment for PCSOs from 406, (of which 200 are funded by SWP 

and 206 by Welsh Government grant), to 447 PCSOs, in total. Recruitment plans have 

been reviewed and the Force is planning on reaching a full establishment of 447 by 

the end of March 2022 (subject to leaver variations).  

A new way of reporting progress against total target recruitment numbers is being 

developed by South Wales Police, with the intention of rolling this out to the other 

three Forces once agreed. 

7. Apprenticeship Levy 

The full reimbursement of Policing Education Qualifications Framework (PEQF) 

costs remains an issue. The apprenticeship levy and PEQF costs (before the Police 

Uplift Programme) were estimated at £6.7 million per annum across all four Forces 

for 2021/22, with a £1 million grant from the Home Office to partly offset these costs, 

meaning approximately 85% of costs being borne by forces in Wales (SWP 

approximately £2.6 million). This is understood by the Secretary of State for Wales, 

Rt Hon Simon Hart MP, and the Police Minister at the Home Office, Kit Malthouse 

MP and we understand that discussions are continuing in Whitehall to resolve this. 

Page 27



POLICE & CRIME PANEL : 7th DECEMBER 2021 
ANALYSIS OF COMPREHENSIVE SPENDING REVIEW 2021 & OTHER SALIENT FINANCIAL ISSUES   
 
 

8. Policing Response to Covid-19 

Recording and reporting by Forces on Covid-19 expenditure to the Home Office has 

been relaxed in recent months. There was an additional funding allocation at the 

close of the last financial year (£58M in total across all Forces), and across Wales a 

consistent treatment of creating an Earmarked COVID 19 Reserve was agreed and 

has proven to be sound. This has allowed Forces to mitigate some of the costs 

incurred in 2021/22. The provision of PPE from the Department of Health & Social 

Care, via the national hub will continue to March 2022 and the Home Office are not 

anticipating the need for additional general funding for Covid-19 in the 2021/22 

financial year.  

9. Pensions 

The deficit on the Police Pension Fund is not fully funded. A pensions grant has 

been in place for the past two years and will continue into 2021/22. However, this is 

not consolidated into base grant settlements, and so there remains a risk this will be 

discontinued at a later date.  In addition, the pensions grant remains at the same 

cash value, while pensions contributions are increasing proportionate to both pay 

increases and additional officers (Operation Uplift). 

The implications of the McCloud/Sargeant judgement (unlawful discrimination 

against younger members of the Judicial and Firefighters’ pension schemes) will 

impact upon all main public sector schemes, with significantly increased employer 

contributions likely from 2024. The indications are that this could increase employer 

contributions from 31% to 45%. Maintaining Officer numbers without additional 

funding will be difficult. In addition, it is emerging that the economic environment is 

driving the discount factor used to calculate the long-term cost of pensions upwards, 

and it remains uncertain how that will be funded.  

The NPCC pensions team is preparing for the Employment Tribunal in December 

2021, relating to the circa 13,000 ‘Injury To Feelings’ (ITF) claims. In addition, a 

further 37,000 ITF claims are in the process of being issued to forces by the ET. This 

is on top of addressing the remedy consequences in terms of scheme membership. 

To ensure we have a consistent approach in Wales, we have formed and All Wales 

Pension Hub with staff from each force to ensure a co-ordinated approach. 

The CSR was silent on future Pensions funding, since this is a Treasury issue which 

will be picked up separately. 

10. Summary 

Based on the headline announcements, the three-year settlement, whilst more 

favourable than it had widely been anticipated, again represents a real-terms cut to 

funding.  

Page 28



POLICE & CRIME PANEL : 7th DECEMBER 2021 
ANALYSIS OF COMPREHENSIVE SPENDING REVIEW 2021 & OTHER SALIENT FINANCIAL ISSUES   
 
 

11. Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Police & Crime panel notes the contents of this report, in 

particular the analysis of the Comprehensive Spending Review 2021. 

 

 

 

 

Peter Curran 

Treasurer to the South Wales Police & Crime Commissioner 

November 2021 

 

 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

 

  

1 

 

 

REPORT OF THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER 

SOUTH WALES POLICE 

TITLE:  Half-Yearly Management Accounts for 2021/22 

DATE:  7th December 2021 

PURPOSE: For Noting 
 

1. RECOMMENDATION 

That the Police and Crime Panel notes the financial performance for 
South Wales Police for the first six months of the 2021/22 financial year, 
including salient issues: 
 

 A foreast outturn surplus of £0.19 million for the 2021/22 year. 

 

 Significant work has been completed on the Productivity and Innovation 

Strategy and £5.8M of Productivity gains have been quality assured 

and will be used to demonstrate efficiency and effectiveness. 

 Progress against the Capital Programme under the current supply 

chain challenges is commendable.  

 

2. INTRODUCTION & BACKGROUND 

The Police & Crime Panel receives half-yearly management accounts of 

South Wales Police. 

Attached are detailed management accounts for the period April to 

September 2021. 

In terms of governance, the accounts were presented to the Commissioner’s 

Strategic Board in November, having first been considered by the Resources 

Board. 

4. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

The financial implications are fully articulated within the attached report. 

 

5. EQUALITIES  AND HUMAN RIGHTS CONSIDERATIONS 

This proposal has been considered against the general duty to promote 

equality, as stipulated under our Strategic Equality Plan and has been 

assessed not to discriminate against any particular group. The Commissioner 

and the Chief Constable share a high level of commitment to promoting 

equalities – most recently working  to provide leadership within Policing in 

Wales and within Criminal Justice in Wales on race equality – and putting 

Page 31



  

 

 

  

2 

 

 

principles into practice in South Wales in our internal arrangements, in 

combatting hate crime of all sorts and in ensuring that resources are deployed 

to meet these commitments..  

 

In preparing this report, consideration has been given to the requirements of 

the Articles contained in the European Convention on Human Rights and the 

Human Rights Act 1998. 

6. RISKS 

The detailed financial analysis undertaken as part of the preparation of the 

accounts assesses all expenditure from a risk (of overrun) perspective. 

7. PUBLIC INTEREST 

This report will be placed on the website of both the Commissioner and the 

Police and Crime Panel. 

8. CONTACT OFFICER 

Peter Curran, Chief Finance Officer to the Police and Crime Commissioner for 

South Wales. 

9. ANNEXES 

Detailed Revenue Account for the period April to September 2021 

 

Page 32



POLICE & CRIME PANEL : 7TH DECEMBER 2021 
 

HALF-YEARLY MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS TO SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
  

  
Page 1 

POLICE & CRIME PANEL : DECEMBER 7TH 2021 
 
HALF-YEARLY MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS FOR THE PERIOD APRIL TO 
SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The 2021/22 financial year represents the eleventh consecutive year of real terms and 

cash reductions in grant funding for South Wales Police. The Police Officer Uplift 
Programme (PUP) grant is ringfenced to achieving, nationally, an additional 20,000 
police officer posts over three years by March by 2023 and is not available for core 
policing or base budgets. The Police and Crime Commissioner in agreement with the 
Police and Crime Panel in February 2021, set a Revenue Budget of £327.9M and a 
Capital Programme of £43.7M for the financial year 2021/22.  

 

1.2 The data in this report has been compiled from the Force’s Fully Integrated Resource 
Management System (FIRMS) in conjunction with budget holders supported by finance 
business partners as part of the force’s comprehensive financial management 
arrangements. 

 

1.3 The financial management process seeks to identify as early as possible variations in 
budget estimates and focuses on known pressures and volatile areas of business whilst 
also identifying potential areas of underspend across all business areas. 
 

B FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
2 Revenue Position 
 
2.1 The table below summarises the current financial position across the portfolio of budgets 

and shows a negative variance to date of £4.19M. However, this is primarily a timing 
and phasing issue on planned spend and the forecast full year position is anticipated as 
a net positive variance of £0.19M on the Revenue Account. 

 
 

BUDGET AREA Year to date

1st April to 30th Sept 2021

Actual 

YTD

Budget 

YTD

Variance 

YTD

Annual 

Budget

Projected 

Full Year 

Spend

Projected 

Carry 

Forward/ 

Transfer to 

Reserves & 

Provisions

Variance 

Full Year

£M £M £M £M £M £M £M

Police Officer Pay & Pensions 78.24 82.44 4.20 166.67 162.33 2.00 2.34

Police Staff Pay 31.67 32.71 1.04 65.90 65.26 0.00 0.64

Devolved Budgets 4.67 3.77 -0.90 9.55 10.60 0.07 -1.12

Force/ Contingency Budgets 19.62 17.60 -2.03 24.39 25.07 0.00 -0.69

Centralised Budgets 7.14 6.97 -0.17 13.36 13.67 0.00 -0.30

Externally Funded Budgets 6.79 2.35 -4.44 13.60 12.21 0.00 1.39

Collaborative Budgets 13.77 11.68 -2.09 21.42 21.04 0.00 0.38

Central Budgets -4.86 -5.16 -0.30 6.52 7.26 1.70 -2.45

Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner 2.93 3.42 0.48 6.49 6.49 0.00 0.00
TOTAL 159.97 155.78 -4.19 327.89 323.93 3.77 0.19

Full Year

Page 33



POLICE & CRIME PANEL : 7TH DECEMBER 2021 
 

HALF-YEARLY MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS TO SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
  

  
Page 2 

2.2 A detailed analysis of Revenue Account is shown at Appendix 1 and the following 
sections provide an outline on some of the most the significant pressures and budget 
variances across the portfolio of budgets: 

 
3.1 Police Officer Pay/Pensions 
 
3.1.1 The Medium-Term Financial Strategy in respect of 2021/22 reflects a base level force 

funded establishment of 2,861, with allocation from the Police Officer Uplift Programme 
(PUP) of 269 (including 6 for the Force’s share of the Regional Organised Crime Unit 
[ROCU]). There is an establishment control system which monitors the officer 
establishment on a monthly basis. The recruitment of additional officers is phased in line 
with recruitment cycles and also takes into account officers leaving the force 
predominantly through retirements. The recruitment plan is designed to run ahead of the 
Home Office allocations and reflects an officer intake of 293 for the year which is the 
single biggest intake of officers in a year since 2007. At the end of September 2021, 
there were 201 of the 269 additional officers in post above the base position, however, 
this will fluctuate month by month due to turnover. The current recruitment plan predicts 
that the Force will end the financial year with 304 officers above the base establishment 
and this is in part in anticipation of the final year of the PUP programme being announced 
as part of the 2022/23 grant settlement later in December 2021.  
 

3.1.2 The ring-fenced PUP grant is £2.3M and reimbursement is on a strict additionally basis 
for year 2 intakes above a baseline of 2,995 (headcount). Based on the planned officer 
recruitment throughout 2021/22, it is anticipated that the force will be able to fully claim 
this grant on officer numbers as well as other costs. 
 

3.1.3 The timing of leavers and new starters is difficult to predict with absolute precision 
(particularly as leavers can elect the retirement dates) and there is also a capacity issue 
within the training environment which necessitates a phased recruitment cycle. The 
issue is compounded through some non-recurring impact of a small number of officers 
‘opting out’ of the police pension scheme, as well as the impact of officers on reduced 
pay due to maternity (currently 26) and long term sick (currently 9 on half or no pay). 
Consequently, whilst the year end establishment significantly exceeds the budgeted 
establishment the turbulence with the establishment is anticipated to generate a positive 
variance. 
 

3.1.4 Following the successful court of appeal judgement on the unlawful discrimination of the 
transitional arrangements implemented upon the introduction of the 2015 police pension 
scheme, the police service has received a large number of claims for damages. In 
respect of South Wales Police we have recorded around 1,200 claims to date. There a 
select number of cases being considered by the courts between December and February 
this financial year which will quantify the range of claims between high, medium and low 
with commensurate compensation. Past cases indicate a range of between £1,000 to 
£9,000. It remains unclear on how these costs will be borne and consequently a prudent 
assumption on costs is forecasted to be reflected in the accounts by the year end.  
 

3.1.5 There is a further complication of the immediate detriment which upon current advice 
returns all serving officers to their legacy schemes by March 2022 with consequential 
costs and this too will have financial implications which are presently too complex to be 
determined. In any event it is likely that these costs will initially be incurred by South 
Wales Police and it is hoped a mechanism to seek reimbursement will be confirmed by 
the Home Office. 
 

Page 34



POLICE & CRIME PANEL : 7TH DECEMBER 2021 
 

HALF-YEARLY MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS TO SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
  

  
Page 3 

3.2 Police Staff Budgets  
 
3.2.1 The approved 2021/22 Medium Term Financial Strategy reflects an ongoing planned 

staff pay vacancy factor of £1M. As at period 6, there is a forecasted full year positive 
variance of £0.64M overall with £0.51M relating to Staff after accounting for the vacancy 
factor and £0.13M relating to PCSOs excluding the impact of the WG grant for an 
additional 41 PCSOs of £1.54M. 

 
3.2.2 The PUP programme reflects the additional pressure on the support functions and the 

programme nationally sustains an uplift of 6,000 police staff (in control rooms forensics, 
fleet etc.) of which the South Wales Police share over the three-year programme is 
anticipated to be around 130 posts depending upon the overall 20,000 officer allocation 
between forces and potentially central agencies. The budget for PUP staff posts to date 
is 90 additional posts includin The PUP programme reflects the additional pressure on 
the support functions and the programme nationally sustains an uplift of 6,000 police 
staff (in control rooms forensics, fleet etc.) of which the South Wales Police share over 
the three-year programme is anticipated to be around 130 posts depending upon the 
overall 20,000 officer allocation between forces and potentially central agencies. The 
budget for PUP staff posts to date is 90 additional posts including the 63 growth posts 
across the Force agreed for 2021/22. Work is ongoing to recruit into these new posts 
but some slippage has resulted on these budgets. Also some successful applicants to 
these new posts have contributed to vacancy savings in core budgets. Therefore at this 
stage it is anticipated that the vacancy factor will be achieved and the in- year pressure 
for temporary posts as well as interns and apprentices can be managed within the 
existing budget. The position will continue to be closely monitored. 
 

3.2.3 During 2021/22, the Welsh Government formally announced the ambition to recruit an 
additional 100 PCSO posts by the end of the financial year with South Wales Police’s 
allocation of this being an extra 41 PCSOs posts and an additional £1.5M grant. This will 
increase the establishment for PCSOs from 406, (200 funded by SWP and 206 by Welsh 
Government grant), to 447 PCSOs in total. Recruitment plans have been reviewed and 
the Force is planning on reaching a full establishment of 447 by the end of March 2022 
(subject to leaver variations).  

 
3.3 Devolved Budgets 
 
3.3.1  The forecast position on devolved budgets is estimated to exceed budget estimates by 

£1.12M overall and primarily relates to a forecasted £1M overspend on overtime for 
Specialist Operations due to the level of vacancies and sickness in the department as 
well as overtime pressures of £0.3M for the Public Service Centre and £0.1M for Custody 
Services. This has been partially offset by a lower than budgeted projected spend in 
several areas, including Specialist Crime, but this could be impacted by the number of 
Major Crime operations required over the remainder of the year.  

 
3.4 Force Budgets/ Contingency Budgets 
 
3.4.1 The force contingency budgets are forecasted to exceed estimates by a net  £0.69M of 

which £1.1M relates to Specialist Operations on overtime and lower than budgeted 
income for Events and Mutual Aid plus the purchase of necessary operational 
equipment, which is partially offset by a £0.3M lower than budget anticipated spend on 
the NPAS service.  

 

Page 35



POLICE & CRIME PANEL : 7TH DECEMBER 2021 
 

HALF-YEARLY MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS TO SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
  

  
Page 4 

3.4.3 Within Fleet Services, there are £0.3M savings on vehicle fuel, however, the Internal 
Contract Hire budget has a forecast negative variance of £0.7M. This is caused by a 
£0.9M higher than budgeted spend on vehicle insurance as well as a £0.4M pressure 
on vehicle repairs which some offsetting by a transfer from reserves of £0.7M. There are 
also several other smaller variances offsetting these pressures. 

 
3.5.1 Centralised Budgets 
 

There is a forecast negative full-year variance of £0.3M for centralised budgets, made 
up of a pressure of £0.4M for Estates on rent and furniture which is partially offset by 
continuing savings on conference fees and accommodation due to the impact of COVID-
19 restrictions as well as a savings from redeployment expenses. 

 
3.6 Externally Funded Budgets 
 
3.6.1 There is currently a full year forecasted positive variance of £1.4M in this area. This is 

due to forecasted overachievements of both ARIS (Asset Recovery Incentivisation 
Scheme) income (£0.1M) and Her Majesty’s Courts & Tribunals Service income within 
Justice Services (£0.2M) as well as budgetary savings forecast on Special Branch of 
(£0.25M) and All Wales Schools (£0.1M).  

 
3.6.2 The full reimbursement of Policing Education Qualifications Framework (PEQF) costs 

remains an issue.  The Force has received a special grant from the Home Office of 
only £1M in 2021/22 to be shared between all four Wales forces, resulting in a £0.56M 
shortfall for South Wales against budgeted income for 2021/22.  The apprenticeship 
levy and PEQF costs before the Police Uplift Programme were estimated at £7M per 
annum and therefore the £1M equates to around 85% of costs being borne by forces in 
Wales. This is understood by the Secretary of State for Wales, Rt Hon Simon Hart MP, 
and the Police Minister at the Home Office, Kit Malthouse MP and we understand that 
discussions are continuing in Whitehall to resolve this. 

 
 
3.7 Collaborative Initiatives 
 
3.7.1 The table below shows the forecast full year performance against the Force’s 

contributions to collaborative budgets. 
 

Collaborative Area Annual Budget Forecast Outturn Variance 

 £000 £000 £000 

Procurement 397 374 22 

Joint Legal Services 929 926 3 

Digital Services Division 3,796 3,661 135 

All Wales Collaboration Board 131 205 -73 

WECTU 34 48 -14 

Joint Firearms Unit 7,774 7,626 148 

Joint Scientific Investigation Unit 
& Forensic Collision Investigation 
Unit 5,048 4,987 60 

ROCU / Tarian 3,306 3,210 96 

Total 21,415 21,037 377 

 

Page 36



POLICE & CRIME PANEL : 7TH DECEMBER 2021 
 

HALF-YEARLY MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS TO SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
  

  
Page 5 

3.7.2 The figures above indicate a potential net positive variance of £0.377M against the 
budgets for these Collaborative Units for 2021/22. Some of the larger variances are 
considered in more detail in the paragraphs below. 

 
Joint Firearms Unit 
 

3.7.3 A positive variance of £0.148M is forecast at year-end against the Force contribution to 
the JFU and this relates largely to Armed policing at Cardiff Airport. The Airport does not 
currently require an armed policing presence and as a result some of the officers 
normally based there have been re-deployed and not replaced until a decision is made 
about the future policing profile for the Airport. This is resulting in an in-year under-spend 
for the Firearms budget. 

 
Digital Services Division 
 

3.7.4 The positive forecast position against DSD relates largely to the capitalisation of 
budgeted staffing costs against the ESN project within the Capital Programme. This is 
driving the forecast underspend of £0.135M against DSD revenue budgets. 
 
Tarian / ROCU 
 

3.7.5 There is a forecast positive variance against the budget for Tarian of £0.096M. This 
reflects a forecast underspend against staffing budgets resulting from a number of 
delays in recruitment and also delays in agreeing the release of Officers who have been 
successfully recruited to the unit. 

 
3.8 Other Central Budgets 
 
3.8.1 The year-end forecast anticipates a negative variance of £2.45M as a consequence of 

significant unfunded pressures in the capital programme of £1.96M that will need to be 
funded. An initial virement £0.96M in P4 (funding BMW engine problem £0.66M, 
Proactive Team Vehicles £0.2M and Engagement Pods £01.M) now needs to be 
supplemented with additional virements into the Capital Programme for end of life force 
CCTV system (£0.5M), body worn camera replacement programme (£0.25M) and a 
second horsebox (£0.25M). 

 
3.8.2 As a result of the exceptional demand on frontline resources additional overtime working 

is predicted and a commitment of £0.8M for has been reflected in the forecast to date 
with a potential further spike in demand and overtime anticipated in the new year. 
Appropriate adjustments between budgets will be reflected over the coming months.  

 
3.8.3 The forecast maintains the previous approvals on reserves in line with the MTFS and 

reserve strategy in terms of replacements and inflation. There is also a one-off pressure 
to fund more than the standard public holidays in 2022/23 of £0.7M due to an additional 
bank holiday as well as some holidays falling on a weekend which is reflect as a planned 
movement in reserves by the year end. 

 
3.9 Police and Crime Commissioner’s Team  
 
3.9.1 At this stage, all expenditure is anticipated to be in line with approved budgets. 
 
 

Conclusion 

Page 37



POLICE & CRIME PANEL : 7TH DECEMBER 2021 
 

HALF-YEARLY MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS TO SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
  

  
Page 6 

 
3.9.2 The Revenue Account, subject to variances itemised above, is therefore forecasted to 

break-even with a small positive variance of £0.19M. This will continue to be carefully 
monitored for the remainder of the year, as factors such as the timing and size of new 
intakes, additional transferee joiners and level of retirements / other leavers will impact 
on this. 

 
4 PRODUCTIVITY, INNOVATION AND EFFICIENCY 
 
4.1 As part of the Spending Review 2021 we are anticipating a police productivity and 

efficiency target for the service of £1billion over the next three years with a split of one 
third cashable savings and two thirds efficiency/productivity savings. The Force has 
developed a Productivity Innovation and Efficiency Strategy to ensure it is able to 
evidence these gains. 

 
4.2 The table below is a summary of the potential cashable and non-cashable gains that 

have been identified to date. Individual schemes are a mix of those already delivered 
where the benefits are now being measured against baselines or new/upcoming 
schemes where baselines and benefits have been estimated. These are still subject to 
quality assurance before these can be claimed with confidence against the Home Office 
targets.  
 

4.3 To date £5.8M of productivity and innovation gains have been quality assured. Of the 
£5.8M approximately £3.4M relates to reductions in sickness levels due to the 
implementation of agile/hybrid working during the Covid 19 pandemic. A further 9 
schemes making up the £5.3M balance need to be quality assured. A further 40 schemes 
also need to be evaluated/costed and then quality assured. We have engaged with 
CIPFA to review our methodology a part of an independent assurance. 

 
 

 
 

  

TOTAL Gains Net Gain

One Off 

or Capital 

£000

Annual 

£000

2020/21 

£000

2021/22 

£000

2022/23 

£000

2023/24 

£000

2024/25 

£000

Sub total 

£000

2020/21 

£000

2021/22 

£000

2022/23 

£000

2023/24 

£000

2024/25 

£000

Non Cash 

Sub total 

£000

TOTAL Cash 

Saved & 

Productivity 

Gain £000

NET Gain 

£000

0.0 0.1 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 2.7 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.1 3.3 3.2

Change Programme 2021 - 2024 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Local Delivery/Continuous Improvement 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.4 0.6 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.3 0.0 1.2 0.0 0.0 1.6 2.6 2.4

Digital Services Division 0.4 0.0 0.0 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 3.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.4 4.4 4.4

Contract Management 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Collaboration 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

National Programmes 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.6 0.9 0.9 0.9

Income Generatoin 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Other 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2

TOTAL 0.5 0.2 0.1 1.7 0.6 0.0 0.0 2.4 6.5 0.3 1.3 0.1 0.6 8.9 11.3 11.0

Change Programme 2018 - 2021

Productivity GainsCashable SavingsCosts

Page 38



POLICE & CRIME PANEL : 7TH DECEMBER 2021 
 

HALF-YEARLY MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS TO SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
  

  
Page 7 

5. Capital Programme. 
 
5.1 The table below summaries the expenditure on the Capital Programme to the end of 

September 2021 whilst Appendix 2 provides a detailed summary of the programme. 
 
5.2 A detailed monitoring of the capital programme has established that given the 

combination of Brexit and Covid there are difficulties in the supply chain and scheme 
implementation delays and whilst the current forecasts anticipates a 23% slippage the 
overall funding and costs of the programme remain on track with a small overspend of 
£300K on a £52M programme which given the current market conditions would be a 
highly positive outcome 

 

 
 
5.3 The main changes in capital budget reflect the commentary in the Revenue Account and 

include:- 
 

 Additional departmental revenue contributions for capital expenditure; 

 New expenditure to be financed through the Police Uplift Grant; 

 Additional revenue contributions to fund the pressures on the Fleet Budget due to 
the BMW engine safety issue and service cycles; 

 Proactive team vehicles; and 

 Community based mobile hubs. 
 
 Infrastructure Development and Replacement 
  
5.4 The prioritised property condition works is ongoing to ensure the Force’s estate is 

compliant with health and safety regulations. There is still an on-going impact of COVID 
19 on the achievement of these works, however, it is prudent to assume that the budget 
will be fully utilised. 

 
5.5 The Fleet replacement programme is under significant pressure to receive all vehicles 

required this year, this is due to demands on our current suppliers, both Brexit and 
COVID 19 are still impacting on first- and second-line car manufactures. The Fleet 
budget this year is also supporting a new 6 carrier Horsebox £0.23M as well as a new 
Search Boat £0.25M. The impact of Police Officer uplift has resulted in requirements for 
additional vehicles which is being supported by the uplift grant, £0.625M in 2021-22.  

 
5.6 The biggest pressure for Fleet during this reporting cycle has been the unexpected issue 

with our ARV & RPU vehicles, due to engine service/safety concerns on some BMW 

Actual

2020-21
MTFS Budget 

2021-22

 Adjusted 

Budget 

 Full Year 

Forecast 

Variance to 

Revised 

Estimate

Under/(Over) 

Spend

Slippage

Requests

Variance 

after 

Slippage

Under/(Over) 

Spend

£'000 £'000  £'000  £'000 £'000 £'000

Estates - Infrastructure Development 945            2,122             2,430                         2,430 - - -

Fleet - Replacement 3,393         3,597             4,853                         4,452 401 401 -

Information Services - Infrastructure Development 2,667         2,706             4,268                         4,268 - - -

Other - Infrastructure Development & Replacement 1,549         10                  678                               701 (23) - (23)

Estates - Projects Total 21,201       24,553           26,744                     22,552 4,192 4,391 (199)

ICT  Projects total 701            1,663             2,220                         1,997 223 223 -

DSD Internally  Funded Projects 787            10,045           11,116                       4,026 7,090 7,201 (111)

TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME 31,243       44,696           52,309                     40,426 11,883 12,216 (333)

Funded By:

Home Office Grant 266            266                266               266                - - -

Revenue Contributions 10,415       13,480           14,800          8,446             6,354 6,488 (134)

Other Grants and Contributions 320            625                684               684                - - -

Use of Capital Reserves 5,723         7,904             7,595            7,595             - - -

Capital Receipts 233            1,000             1,000            1,000             - - -

Borrowing 14,286       21,421           27,964          22,435           5,529 5,728 (199)

TOTAL FUNDING IN YEAR 31,243       44,696           52,309          40,426           11,883 12,216 (333)

Page 39



POLICE & CRIME PANEL : 7TH DECEMBER 2021 
 

HALF-YEARLY MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS TO SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
  

  
Page 8 

range of vehicles. Following national guidance these vehicles had to be removed from 
operations and urgent replacements sought resulting in an additional £0.660M spend 
which is expected to be recouped through a national process.  

 
5.7 The ICT Infrastructure Development programme (Networks, Servers, Radios, Storage 

and Licences) has an adjusted budget of £3.5M, this includes over a £1.0M carry forward 
from 2020-21. This this budget is currently anticipated to be fully utilised. ICT continue 
to support the roll out of IT equipment to allow staff to work from home and demand 
continues to grow. The budget for Laptops remains under pressure as supplies are 
limited due to international semi-conductor shortages. The FFF2 rollout programme will 
need to reflect the new hybrid working policy and support some of this requirement. 
There is additional funding for Radios/Laptops & Body worn cameras for the uplift 
officers, this will be added in as expenditure is incurred.   

 
 Internally Funded Projects 
 
5.8 The most significant internally funded projects are within Estates having a combined 

adjusted budget of £26.7M detailed in the table below. The Police Learning Centre and 
the new Gym are due to finish building works by November 2021, with fit-out complete 
and occupation towards the end of Spring 2022, subject to supply chain challenges.  

 

 
 
 
5.9 The overall schemes under development remain on course to be close to budgets and 

the Tri-Force Firearms Range Land acquisition stage is entering the design phase to 
begin at the start of the next calendar year. The Cardiff Central scheme and the Temple 
of Peace lease continue to make progress but are subject to partnership agreements 
and timings. 

 
 Digital Services Division (DSD) 
 
5.10 The collaborative DSD programme has an adjusted budget of £11.1M. Within DSD the 

most significant budgets are Fixed, Flexible Field 2 (FFF2) of £6.4M & ICCS/Command 
and Control Replacements £3.3M. As part of FFF2, the mobile phone replacement has 
been completed in line with security protocols and the second phase of laptop 
replacements is about to commence and is again subject to supply issues. The 
Command & Control replacement system is close to tender stage and majority of spend 
will commence in the following financial year. 

 
 

MTFS 

Budget

2021-22

Adjusted 

Budget

Spend to 

date P6

Full Year 

Forecast 

Variance to 

Revised

Estimate

 Under /

 (Over)

Spend

Slippage 

requests

Variance 

after 

Slippage

Under/

(Over)

Spend

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Police Learning Centre 8,798       10,483     6,580       10,258     225 -           225

Police Learning Centre - Fit out 3,000       3,000       62            3,250       (250) -           (250)

Gym & Car park 4,351       4,762       2,776       4,596       166 -           166

Site Wide Enabling 1,150       1,150       456          1,392       (242) -           (242)

Other - HQ 1,550       1,320       83            1,022       298 391 (93)

Land at Ty Thomas -           325          -           325          -              -           -            

Tri Force Range 1,704       1,704       38            1,709       (5) -           (5)

Temple of Peace 4,000       4,000       -           -           4,000 4,000 -            

24,553     26,744     9,995       22,552     4,192          4,391       (199)

Page 40



POLICE & CRIME PANEL : 7TH DECEMBER 2021 
 

HALF-YEARLY MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS TO SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
  

  
Page 9 

6 OVERALL SUMMARY  
 
6.1 The overall Revenue Account position forecasts a £0.19M positive variance at this stage 

with considerable pressure on devolved overtime budgets. Whilst there is some 
underspending on officer pay due to intakes being later than profiled in the budget, this 
has had to be used to address pressures on the Capital Programme and address funding 
required for legal cases relating to pensions. 

  
6.2 Significant work has been completed on the Productivity and Innovation Strategy and 

£5.8M of Productivity gains have been quality assured and will be used to demonstrate 
the efficiency and effectiveness of the force. 

 
6.3 Progress against the Capital Programme under the current supply chain challenges is 

commendable.  
 
 RECOMMENDATION 
 
7.1 The Police & Crime Panel is recommended to note the contents of this report and the 

financial performance of South Wales Police for the first six months of the 2021/22 
financial year. 

 
 

  

  

Page 41



POLICE & CRIME PANEL : 7TH DECEMBER 2021 
 

HALF-YEARLY MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS TO SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
  

  
Page 10 

APPENDIX 1

Year to 

Date Full Year

1st April - 30th Sept 2021
Actual 

YTD

Budget 

YTD

Variance 

YTD

Annual 

Budget

Projected 

Full Year 

Spend

 Projected 

Carry 

Forward 

Reserves & 

Provisions

Full Year 

Variance

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

PAY COSTS

Police Officer Pay 78,239 82,441 4,202 166,670 162,332 0 2,000 2,338

Police Staff Pay 31,671 32,713 1,043 65,899 65,260 0 0 639

PAY TOTAL 109,910 115,154 5,244 232,569 227,592 0 2,000 2,977

DEVOLVED

Mid Gamorgan BCU 497 468 -28 1,386 1,426 0 0 -41

Cardiff & Vale BCU 874 805 -69 2,104 2,102 2 0 0

Swansea & Neath Port Talbot BCU 529 475 -53 1,482 1,477 5 0 0

Chief Officers 29 42 13 66 58 5 0 3

Corporate Communications 23 22 -1 48 19 5 0 24

Professional Standards 43 32 -11 89 85 4 0 0

Specialist Crime 467 711 244 1,635 1,392 25 0 218

Information Management 26 24 -2 47 62 0 0 -14

Information Systems 144 98 -47 214 96 5 0 113

Operational Support 725 228 -497 591 1,614 0 0 -1,023

Justice Services 80 95 14 181 181 1 0 0

Custody Services 258 197 -61 433 583 0 0 -149

Public Service Centre 569 458 -112 1,024 1,305 0 0 -280

Corporate Finance -45 -9 36 -2 -57 5 0 50

Estates 43 19 -25 39 64 0 0 -25

Fleet 28 6 -22 19 17 2 0 0

Procurement & Logistics -2 -5 -3 0 -15 5 0 10

Human Resources 30 28 -2 60 75 0 0 -16

Learning & Development Services 327 56 -271 82 85 0 0 -3

Corporate Governance 22 19 -3 51 29 5 0 16

Devolved Total 4,668 3,769 -900 9,549 10,596 69 0 -1,116

Force

Chief Officers 19 16 -3 356 351 0 0 5

Corporate Communications 1 16 15 32 6 0 0 26

Professional Standards 6 17 11 34 36 0 0 -2

Specialist Crime 1,545 1,702 157 3,338 2,881 0 0 457

Information Management -132 -61 71 -122 -268 0 0 146

Information Systems 11,879 10,274 -1,606 10,547 10,601 0 0 -54

Operational Support 1,572 1,111 -461 2,216 3,055 0 0 -840

Justice Services 24 -115 -139 -150 -80 0 0 -70

Custody Services 1,345 1,326 -18 2,653 2,782 0 0 -130

Estates 2,162 2,007 -154 2,880 3,054 0 0 -174

Fleet -374 -23 351 -93 -438 0 0 345

Internal Contract Hire 651 408 -243 43 702 0 0 -659

Human Resources 103 200 97 400 237 0 0 163

Legal Services 270 255 -15 510 510 0 0 0

Corporate Governance 49 35 -14 821 724 0 0 97

Contingency Reserve 502 428 -74 923 920 0 0 3

FORCE/ CONTINGENCY TOTAL 19,620 17,595 -2,025 24,387 25,074 0 0 -687

CENTRALISED TOTAL 7,136 6,968 -168 13,364 13,669 0 0 -305

EXTERNAL FUNDED TOTAL 6,788 2,352 -4,437 13,597 12,206 0 0 1,391

COLLABORATION

Procurement & Logistics 226 249 23 397 374 0 0 22

Legal 567 589 21 929 926 0 0 3

Corporate Governance 1,990 2,047 57 3,796 3,661 0 0 135

Collaboration Strategic 128 87 -40 131 205 0 0 -73

Wales Extremism & Counter-Terrorism Unit -401 -650 -249 34 48 0 0 -14

Firearms Collaboration 4,056 4,318 262 7,774 7,626 0 0 148

Scientific Investigation Unit 2,666 2,937 270 5,048 4,987 0 0 60

ROCU 4,541 2,105 -2,437 3,306 3,210 0 0 96

COLLABORATION TOTAL 13,774 11,682 -2,092 21,415 21,037 0 0 377

CENTRAL BUDGETS

Capital Financing & DRF 1,832 2,283 452 17,732 18,318 0 0 -586

Interest & Investment Income -4 0 4 0 -30 0 0 30

Other Central Budgets -6,689 -7,439 -750 -11,214 -11,024 0 1,700 -1,890

Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner 2,933 3,415 482 6,488 6,488 0 0 0

CENTRAL BUDGETS TOTAL -1,928 -1,740 188 13,005 13,751 0 1,700 -2,446

TOTAL 159,969 155,779 -4,190 327,885 323,926 69 3,700 191

Page 42



POLICE & CRIME PANEL : 7TH DECEMBER 2021 
 

HALF-YEARLY MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS TO SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
  

  
Page 11 

 

 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting of South Wales Police and Crime Panel - Tuesday, 14 September 2021
	4 Introduction and South Wales Joint Approach to Community Safety - Police and Crime Commissioner
	Annex A
	Annex B
	Annex C

	6 Finance and Budgeting Issues - Peter Curran, Treasurer Police and Crime Commissioner and Umar Hussain Chief Finance Officer South Wales Police
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3


